Town of Cromwell
Planning and Zoning Commission

SPECIAL MEETING
7:00 P.M. TUESDAY SEPTEMBER 27, 2022
COUNCIL CHAMBERS CROMWELL TOWN HALL 41 WEST STREET

AGENDA
RECEIVED FOR RECORD
Sap H1»2027 O1:44F
Call to Order %Igmncﬁté;ée
Roll Call CROMMELL, CT
Seating of Alternates

Approval of Agenda

Public Comments

Development Compliance Officer Report:

Director of Planning and Development Report:

New Business: Accept and Schedule New Applications:

New Business:

a. Application #22-21: Request for a Site Plan Modification at 33 Berlin Road. 6 West Ave,
L1C is the Applicant and Mary Ann Marchio is the Owner.

b. Presentation on the Plan of Conservation and Development Update.

10. Public Hearings:

a. Application #22-16: Request for a Special Permit under Section 6.11.B of the Zoning
Regulations to allow for the retail sales of Cannabis and Cannabis related products at 33
Berlin Road. 6 West Ave, LLC is the Applicant and Mary Ann Marchio is the Owner.

11. Plan of Conservation and Development Update Report
12. Commissioner's Comments:
13. Approval of Minutes:
a. September 6, 2022
14, Adjourn:

S N



panrouddyl  zZOZ/6T/L Nwad fedads oy ddy IALQ Y1999S 05T ezziney uInNY|  ST-Z2
pancaddy] zz0Z/t12/9 s1y31 103 uonesiypow uejd aus|uuey sawer werded g angeat a3 jemwond]  pI-Z¢
panolddy| zzoz/eT/L suonjels Fuidieys 24032 moje 01 3xal]  JSwpUIWY Suuoz siwpra Bespoin|  £1-72
panciddy ze0e/L/9 4S 000°T uey: 4518343 a8eien] 192115 UIRIN 795-095 llalieg uoseys g Alpownt|  ZI-£2
£T/5 uo uaaz-panoiddy ulwpy {Aoys aeD) Nwuad aaj Aetodwa 199415 UIRIN 6T poosug Asupoy| TI-77
panoiddy 2zoe/s/v yded Mmous -UCI1BJILIPON UBld 2)IS peoy saj0) 191 SHIOMINgN [13muIcs) Jo umo ]l OT-Z¢
panciddy 2Toz/s/s dejy suoz sy3 03 aSuey) Joy ddy peoy |[IH UensHy) 271 “sBulp|oH puel uag 09Nl 60-2Z
49T B peoy uileg Q0T
paroaddyl  zzoz/6T/V (uopuei ayl) ‘asq ucpuel 3y - peoy 591e10ssy ade||IA [lamwox|  go0-zz
[BIIUIPISTY AjiLUe)-13NIA pauUUe|d - UOIIRDIIPOIA Ug|d US alinbg Anuno) oSt
panoaddy]  zzoz/el/v 210)S u033uIINg M3N -UOIBILIPOIA Ue|g LS 31015 {uuN gH wapisaid 01A) Aepy Biead 4l £0-22
uoldulng- 1ajuad
Sauddaouc be u-asiuols
panciddy zeoe/s/s suolle|ngay Sujuoz puawy o1 ddy v/N siqeuue) 3uluoz pue Sujuue|d] 90-zz
umelpyuml  zeoz/st/e suole|nday Sutuoz puawy o} ddy v/N D11 ‘@AY 1S3M 9 8 Uy AdejA/moulis matpuy|  §0-2¢
paroaddyl  zz0zZ/ST/S pegd ysepds pasodoid yoouq|apy peoy 3||IASYIIH 09 Jupyoosqepy/uosuems Uarl  +0-¢¢
panoxddy|  zzoz/61/v syuawanoidun peoy axyidunys ¢ ysieyAeq Aeo]  €0-zz
107 3upjled 1 sucileaouay apedeq UoIeIHPOIN uRld 3115
panosddy 720T/S/Y s8ay Suluo7 puswy 03 ddy v/N saunuap Aeg Anuegl  70-zZt
panoiddy]  zzoz/1/¢ 22/92/9-02/9 wolpino) yod|  peoy qn|) J0o 3up JUdA3 IN0L ¥Od]l TO-CT
ceoz[xs|x zzoz Heday 5,201 Dzd]\3unoel Lllioday Hwaad 2202 28d
5192yspeaJds\SININNI0A IDIANYI\SUIEIUOD\B1eALd
snieis) ajeq uoisnagy Ananoy jo adAy uonREeIOT S uedddy jo awen]  Juad]




Suipuad

{(uopuet ay]) - s1984eY2 1BD - UOIIEIIPPOIN URld NS peoy sa1e1d0ssy ade|IA [lomwold] Te-z7
a4inbg Aljuno) OsT
Sulpuag sday Suiuoz ay3 01 Juswpuswy Joy ddy 199415 159 T UoISSILIWIOY) m:ﬂow pue 3uluue|d] 0g-7¢
Buipuaq uoIeIIPO|A Ueld SUS Jo) ddy peoy w|iag 19T 66{C HeW|BM| 6Z-T7T
Buipuad Bup|q Aossazde aweyy 132135 UIRIN £92 T ‘@anowoiny jlamwold] 8z-zz
[991s AJOIS-T JO UOINIISUOD-jeAoIddy ueld a)s Joy ddy
Suipuad 1013151 AB[BAD 122415 WBA £97 D11 ‘sanowoiny [lamwad|  £Z-72
eaJe plezeH poold |e1dads - Nwuad jeppads 103 ddy
durpuad Auadoud 01 |4 ppe - HuLIR{ |edads 10} ddy aueq JYSy peas g Jiyay susjepseln] 97-Z2
YOooug J2wung 7T
Buipuay sjeas|]  peoy Ateuoissiy s ~uiAn weuano)| sz-zz
9-% Supjied |eucnlippy - uonedyipow ueld axs 10y ddy
Buipuayg S|el21ew 1o SUlYSnID-NUIRg |eads Jo) ddy 193115 1335 YO» Alllay 99315 - uononuisuo) Junoweled|  z-zz
Suipuad dn aAlp/m ueINE)SA 192115 153M S6T (me] Apowued) wiapy Aef 0/3 377 usyayd emwol)]  £z-7T
pooy4 1sey B 1oN135U03 03 pasodoid-Nuiad [eads 1oy ddy
Buipuag |eacaddy ueld aus 1oy ddy 199015 1S9/ S6T {(me7 Apownied) wiapy Aer 0/2 377 uaoiyd emwon|  zz-zz
durpuad jeroaddy ue|d 31s 1oy ddy peoy ul1ag £§ ZauQuwis malpuy D11 ‘9AY 1sam 9| Te-zz
panoiddy 7702/9/6 PUISI ABRIDAD peoy ullag § suayonog Awy 0/ 377 ‘sainjuap Aeg Aljuegl  0z-zz
E3lY piezeH poo(d [evads-Nuwaad |enads Joy ddy
paaciddy zenz/a/fe |eacuddy ue|d aus 1oy ddy peoy uidag § susyonos Auly 0/ 377 ‘saunjuap Aeg Anueg|  61-z¢
parosddy 7202/9/6 13)1R19Y peoy ulag § suayanos Awy 0/2 311 ‘saunjuap Aeg Anueg| g81-z7
SIGRUUR) 35M-1NPY YSI|QRIS3 01 W4 [e1dads 103 ddy
panosddy z7e0z/9/6 Huuad |einads sop ddy SALI(] Yded Jan1Y 9 ouijon |ned uyory LT-Z¢
durpuad SIqeuue) [1e19y 1O} NI [e128dS 10} ddy peoy uiyaq €€ ZaUoWIS M3Ipuy D17 9AY Isapm o)  91-22




Name of Project:

Street Address:

Volume/Page:

Applicant Name:

Address:

Telephone:
Email Address:

Property
Owner Name:

Address:

Attached:

Application #22- 5, \

TOWN OF CROMWELL
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

APPLICATION FOR SITE PLAN APPROVAL

— Redatd Copnabts Echblishmont-

¥ ]
14

33 Bl RL,
ERE M 0 piN# 0 5@\‘1%

& [ ad A, (LC
& et Ao, Eo fomplon, (T 0G0

0-962- Y067 (day) (evening)
de/r(’_ﬂm
G bdost e Ll Ca 4 ,

,/7@#‘}’ Ann  Mprcdsi /o

CT 06092

( ) Application fee.
() Twenty-five copies of the Site Development Plan prepared in accordance with
Article 13.3 of the Cromwell Zoning Regulations.

. Is any part of the site within 500' of an adjoining town? (Yes) (No)
2. Will this project require an Inland Wetlands Agency permit? (Yes) (No)
if ves, have you obtained it? (Yes) (No)
3. Will this project require a DEP Stormwater Management Permit? (Yes) (No)
if yes, have you applied for it? (Yes) (No)
4. Will this Project Require an STC Permit? (Yes) (No)
if ves, have you submitted a copy of the plans to the STC? (Yes) (No)
5. Does the parking comply with the handicapped parking (Yes) (No)

requirements as set forth in current version of the State Building Code?

I hereby certify that the information presented above is correct to the best of my knowledge.

/%Lw B 7-16-2022

“—Applicant Name and Signature Date

rev. 1/6/11



TOWN OF CROMWELL
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

LEGAL NOTICE

The Town of Cromwell Planning and Zoning Commission will hold a Special Public
Hearing on Tuesday September 27, 2022 at 7.00 p.m. in Room 224 of the Cromwell
Town Hali at 41 West Street on the following items:

1. Application #22-16: Request for a Special Permit under Section 6.11.B of the Zoning
Regulations to allow for the retail sales of Cannabis and Cannabis related products at
33 Berlin Road. 6 West Ave, LLC is the Applicant and Mary Ann Marchio is the Owner.

At this hearing interested persons may appear and be heard and written testimony
received. This application is available for public inspection in the office of the Town
Planner.

Alice Kelly
Chairman

Dated in Cromwell, Connecticut this the 12t" day of September 2022.



Application# gl& - /C@

TOWN OF CROMWELL
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

APPLICATION FOR SPECIAL PERMIT

Type of Activity: EEA-_—QQ Cama [ﬁg £ g_.'ééégséml , é

(Per Section L/’j ; //, of the Cromwell Zoning Regulations)

Street Address: 2 &ﬂ%g &,C' Zoning District: H E
Assessor's Parcel ID#:_JOSA(7200 ~ Volume/Page: M

Applicant's Name: é Mﬁé ,44@‘, ( ,[2( ,
Address: (5 'lé]é,ggé 4]4& 5, H@ngg)@ éZ (Jéiﬁ

Telephone Number (daytime): M -~ 406’ 7

Email Address: MM
/ ; )

. - l 7
Address: X ‘ A 4 'a 47V, 42 a%s V.2 AP (A (6 ‘ 7

[ certify that [ have read and I am familiar with the Cromwell Zoning Regulations that pertain to
this type of Special Permit activity, and with Section 13.2.d. (Sign Posting).

L et 6-27-2023

L L@ﬁ)licant) - (date)

rev. 1/6/11



Fontaine, Candice

e Rt e |
From: Popper, Stuart
Sent: Thursday, August 04, 2022 10:28 AM
To: Fontaine, Candice
Subject: FW: 22-16

From: Chief Lamontagne

Sent: Friday, July 15, 2022 10:18 AM

To: Popper, Stuart <spopper@cromwellct.com>
Subject: 22-16

Stuart,

| have reviewed the provided information. | am concerned with traffic exiting the establishment on
Hammerhead Place and impeding traffic turning onto Hammerhead Place from Rt. 372 causing a hazardous
condition. The traffic study refers to the previous business, however, the previous business had no delivery
trucks entering/exiting the facility, which this establishment will have. | would suggest the entrance/exit onto
Hammerhead Place be removed so all traffic entering/exiting from the two other areas in the plaza.

Denise Lamentagne
Chief of Police

Cromwell Police Department
860-635-2256 x.7843
860-613-2934 fax

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION: The information contained in this e-mail is confidential and protected from general
disclosure. If the recipient or the reader of this e-mail is not the intended recipient, or person responsible to receive this
e-mail, you are requested to delete this e-mail immediately and do not disseminate or distribute or copy. If you have
received this e-mail by mistake, please notify us immediately by replying to the message so that we can take appropriate
action immediately and see to it that this mistake is rectified.



Memorandum

To:  Stuart Popper f
CC: Planning & Zoning Commission Cb

. - . 4%
From: Jon Harriman, P.E. i
Date: 8/29/2022
Re: #22-16 — 33 Berlin Road

I have reviewed the revised site plans, site lighting plans and traffic study. The site plan
calls for minimal revisions to the existing site, and does not appear to require changes
to the existing drainage.

I am in support of the revision that changed the curb cut on Hammer Head Place to
one-way entry only. The traffic study should be updated to reflect this change.
Additionally the operational analysis should indicate level of service in the existing
condition as well.

FAUNFOWENGRIP & Z\BERLIN ROAD\33 BERLIN ROADWIS Barlin Red_JH_082921.doc



MEMORANDUM

To: Stuart B. Popper, AICP, Director of Planning & Development

From: Bruce E. Driska, CZEQ, Zoning & Wetlands Enforcement Officer BD

Date: July 18,2022

Re: Plan Review, PZC Applications #22-16, 33 Berlin Road, Site Plan
COMMENTS

I have reviewed Application #22-16 and have the following comments:

I. The proposed dumpster enclosure is three-sided and not screened in the front. Please show a screened front
gate,

2. Proposed lighting specifications is requested.

3. Proposed signage specifications is requested.



Fontaine, Candice

R
From: Popper, Stuart
Sent: Thursday, August 04, 2022 10:28 AM
To: Fontaine, Candice
Subject: FW: 22-16

From: Chief Lamontagne

Sent: Friday, July 15, 2022 10:18 AM

To: Popper, Stuart <spopper@cromwellct.com>
Subject: 22-16

Stuart,

| have reviewed the provided information. | am concerned with traffic exiting the establishment on
Hammerhead Place and impeding traffic turning onto Hammerhead Place from Rt. 372 causing a hazardous
condition. The traffic study refers to the previous business, however, the previous business had no delivery
trucks entering/exiting the facility, which this establishment will have. | would suggest the entrance/exit onto
Hammerhead Place be removed so all traffic entering/exiting from the two other areas in the plaza.

Denise Lamantagne
Chief of Police

Cromwell Police Department
860-635-2256 x.7843
860-613-2934 fax

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION: The information contained in this e-mail is confidential and protected from general
disclosure. If the recipient or the reader of this e-mail is not the intended recipient, or person responsible to receive this
e-mail, you are requested to delete this e-mail immediately and do not disseminate or distribute or copy. If you have
received this e-mail by mistake, please notify us immediately by replying to the message so that we can take appropriate
action immediately and see to it that this mistake is rectified.



Fontaine, Candice

From:

Sent:

To:

Subject:
Attachments:

Driska, Bruce

Tuesday, September 20, 2022 12:41 PM

Fontaine, Candice

FW:22-16 33 Berlin Road - Revised Plans for Site Plan Approval
Untitled; Untitled

From: Egan, John <jegan@cromwellct.com>

Sent: Thursday, August 25, 2022 3:25 PM

To: Popper, Stuart <spopper@cromwellct.com>

Cc: Driska, Bruce <bdriska@cromwellct.com>; Fontaine, Candice <cfontaine@cromwellct.com>
Subject: 22-16 33 Berlin Road - Revised Plans for Site Plan Approval

The above revised site plan has been reviewed and the following issues remain. The accessible parking signage does not

meet the 2018 Connecticut State Building Code.
The attached examples will meet the code. Revise plans as required and resubmit for review.

Sincerely, John Egan
Chief Building Official



Popper, Stuart

From: Peck, Rich

Sent; Monday, July 18, 2022 12:05 PM
To: Popper, Stuart

Cc: Milardo, Michelle

Subject: 22-16: 33 Berlin Road- Retail
Stuart,

No formal approval is required from the CWPCA.
Sanitary sewers are connected to the existing proposed retail building at 33 Berlin Road.

Sincerely,

Richard A. Peck

Sewer Administrator, CWPCA
Town of Cromweli
860-632-3430
rpeck@cromwellct.com



Town of Cromwell Planning and Zoning Commission

Dear Planning and Zoning Commission,

This letter is to provide the commission and the public with a clear understanding of an “Adult-Use
Cannabis Retailer” and what this establishment would look like in Cromwell, CT. This facility proposed to
be located at 33 Berlin Rd. The regulaticn for this cannabis use is further explained in the State of
Connecticut’s Bill 1201, Public Act No. 21-1. This includes requirements for security, product control,
public welfare & awareness, etc. For an approved retailer in the State of Connecticut, all these criteria in
the regulation will previously be met before opening and will continuously be met and regulated by the
CT DCP Drug Control Division. Additionally, Cromwell has adopted a zoning regulation specifically for
cannabis which will he met by this application and in the future.

This retail use is desirable because of its traditional retail nature, similar to a small convenience store.
The average customer would be at this facility for approximately 5-10 minutes and is well within the
typical averages of any similar retail use. The product arrives packaged and is distributed packaged;
there is no consumption permitted onsite. All products are behind a barrier and are distributed by
trained and DCP registered staff, so there is no risk of theft of the products. All patrons must be 21 years
of age or older and have a valid form of ID to enter. There will be a carbon filtration system installed
where product is stored within the facility and there will be no odor produced or released from the
facility ever. Strict inventory procedures are required. The facility will always have sufficient and
experienced management onsite when open. The facitity will operate during regular business hours of 9
A.M. - 10 P.M. Monday-Sunday. The facility will be secured with access control and video surveitlance
systems 24/7/365 and will meet all the DCP Drug Control Division’s requirements prior to commencing
operation. This facility will require an approximate staff of {40) individuals which will be compensated
above market rate and will be provided benefits.

Our experience with retail cannabis locations is very positive and the municipalities where they are
located would agree. Note that it is important to have an experienced operator to achieve a consistently
secure and successful operation. Additionally, we have witnessed the surrounding areas of these
locations to be clean, safe, quiet, and professional; as well as remain a very positive contributor to the
community financially and developmentally for years to come. This use is a great fit to contribute to
Cromwell in this retail corridor called the “Central Business District”. We believe with the correct
operator this type of retail establishment would be considerate of the town residents while providing a
great contribution to the community and keeping public safety and welfare in mind. Adult-Use Cannabis

Community impact and positive impact expanded: We feel it's important to direct attention to the job
creation and professional manner that this facility will operate in. I think the overall view on retail
cannabis is changing however there is limited information available to the public which are published by
accredited organizations. It is important to note this historical data is not directly connected with these
regulated facilities but just the cannabis plant or cannabis derived products in general, some of these
articles or events reported do not even separate issues related to non-regulated CBD being sold and
surely do not identify the source of the products. Most of these products are likely coming through the
“black market”. Not only would regulated cannabis sold in Cromwell, CT create jobs both in construction
and operating of the facility; the city will have 3% of the dispensary’s revenue directed towards the
municipality as a tax revenue which they can use for several items outlined in the cannabis bill including
but not limited to fixing roads. With the cost of maintaining our cities and towns here in CT | know this is




Town of Cromwell Planning and Zoning Commission

surely something we can all benefit from, and we don’t know of any other industries offering these
incentives. Will all this being said the cost of these regulated products are likely still be competitive.

Regulated Cannabis Quality: All regulated cannabis is lab tested before leaving the production facility
and if contaminants are found the DCP requires the entire batch to be disposed of. The introduction of
regulated adult-use cannabis into communities has been known to reduce crime rates, reduce the “black
market” which in return ensures the community is buying legal high-grade products with no traces of
harmful ingredients.

Traffic and Parking: The retail use that the previous site plan was approved under is equal to or less then
the conditions of this current proposed use. This site is well designed to handle this use seeing that it
has multiple entrances and exits which are well designed to manage the traffic in and out of this retail
location. Additionally, we have the advantage of being part of the shared parking easement on the rear
parking lot that is currently underutilized and able to handle overflow parking, employee parking and
traffic management without disturbing the public or neighboring businesses in the event there is a high
initial demand. Please refer to the professional traffic study for greater detail. We would like to request
a waiver to allow (4) parking spaces in the front of pour establishment as depicted on our site

improvements plan.

Thank you,
Andrew J. Simonow
6 West Ave, LLC

6WestAveLLC@Gmail.com

860-952-9067



Mitchell Traffic Engineering LLC

7 East Forest Drive
Enfield Connecticut 06082
(860) 841-1690
email: steve@mitchelltraffic.com
www.mitchelltraffic.com

August 23, 2022

Mr. Stuart Popper via email SPOPPER @ CromwellCT.com
Director of Planning and Development

Town of Cromwell

41 West Street

Cromwell CT 06416

RE: 33 Berlin Road
Dispensary Application

Dear Mr. Popper:

We have received Police Chief Lamontagne’s comments provided in a memorandum
dated July 15, 2022. | have had the opportunity to discuss the comments with her, and
we have agreed to the following resolution:

We will modify the site plan to show the driveway to Hammerhead Place to be a one-
way drive for traffic entering the site only. Appropriate “One Way” and “Do Not Enter”
signs will be placed at the driveway entrance. Exiting traffic will utilize either of the two
other driveways to the main site.

Please contact me if you have any questions.
Very truly yours,

MITCHELL TRAFFIC ENGINEERING LLC

Sl

Stephen F. Mitchell, PE

cc: Andrew Simonow
Mark Reynolds
Mark Degnan
George Fellner



Town of Cromwell
Planning and Zoning Commission

REGULAR MEETING
7:00 PM. TUESDAY SEPTEMBER 6, 2022
COUNCIL CHAMBERS CROMWELL TOWN HALL 41 WEST STREET
Minutes and Record of Votes

Present: Chairman: Alice Kelly, Vice Chairman Michael Cannata, Ann Grasso, Chris
Cambareri, Paul Cordone, Brian Dufresne, Ken Rozich, John Keithan

Absent: Robert Donohue, Nick Demetriades

Also present: Director of Planning and Development Stuart Popper
1.  Call to Order

The meeting was called to order at 7:02pm by Chairman Kelly.

2.  Roll Call RECEIVED FOR RECORD
Sap 20y 2022 O1:144P
JoAnn Dovle

The presence of the above members was noted. TOWH CLERK

CROHWELL, CT
3. Seating of Alternates - none
4. Approval of Agenda
A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Brian Dufresne to approve the agenda
as amended to change item 8f to special permit instead of site plan modification and to add item
10d application #22-20. All were in favor; the motion passed.
5. Public Comments - none
6. Development Compliance Officer Report:
Mr. Popper said that Mr, Driska is not here tonight but I can help with any questions you might
have about this report.

7. Director of Planning and Development Report;

M. Popper said that there will not be a meeting on September 20th but there will be a Special



Meeting on September 27th. He said there will be a presentation on the Plan of Conservation and
Development and one item on the agenda. He said he has been thinking about forming a
subcommittee for zoning regulations and the meetings could be held via zoom.

Mr. Popper also said there are 2 applications for cannabis retail facilities and since those have
been submitted the State has changed the statute from allowing 1 store for every 25,000 residents
to allowing the towns their own purview in the number they will allow. He said we will amend
our regulations with the number that the Town Council says we will allow. The Town Attorney
said the Town Council should be the ones to determine that number. He said until that happens
there will be no new applications until the town council decides in September. He said they are
looking for the Commission to approve a 30-day moratorium for any new cannabis retail
applications.

Michael Cannata recused himself from the discussion and vote.

Mr. Cambareri asked if this commission was simply passing the baton to the Town Council or
could they make the decision on the number. Mr. Popper said that the Town Attorney has
interpreted that the statue says the Town Council should be the ones to make the decision.

A motion was made by Brian Dufresne and seconded by Paul Cordone to impose a 30-day
moratorium on accepting any new cannabis retail applications. Brian Dufresne, Paul Cordone,
Alice Kelly, Ann Grasso, Chris Cambareri, Ken Rozich and John Keithan were in favor, the
motion passed.

Mr. Popper continued with his updates and said we should see an application for a medical office
building and a large retailer which will surprise everyone. He also said the old Lord Cromwell
site will be at Wetlands tomorrow and if it is approved they will submit an application to
Planning and Zoning by the end of the month. Mr. Popper said the Wetlands Commission closed
the public hearing on the warehouse and they indicated they will likely vote tomorrow night.

8.  New Business: Accept and Schedule New Applications:
a. Application #22-22: Request for Site Plan Approval for a restaurant at 195 West Street.
Cromwell Chicken, LLC is the Applicant and NL Grocery II DST is the Owner.
b. Application #22-23: Request for a Special Permit under Section 3.3.C.4 of
the Zoning Regulations to permit a restaurant with a drive-up window at 195 West Street.
Cromwell Chicken, LLC is the Applicants and NL Grocery IT DST is the Owner.

Mr. Popper said this is a pad site in front of Stop and Shop for a fast food restaurant and 2
applications will be heard.

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Brian Dufresne to accept and schedule
applications #22-22 and #22-23 for a public hearing on October 4th. All were in favor; the
motion passed.

¢c. Application #22-24: Request for a Special Permit under Section 6.1.H.2 of the Zoning
Regulations to permit a crushing operation at 80R Geer Street. Paramount Construction is



the Applicant and Steve Reilly 1s the Owner.

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by John Keithan to accept and schedule
application for #22-24 for a public hearing on October 4th. All were in favor; the motion passed.

d. Application #22-25: Request for Site Plan Modification to construct additional parking at
52 Missionary Road. Covenant Living of Cromwell, Inc. is the Applicant and the Owner.

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Chris Cambareri to accept and
schedule application #22-25 for a public hearing on October 4th. All were in favor; the motion

passed.

e. Application #22-26: Request for Special Permit to allow to add fill material at 12
Summer Brook Lane. Magdalene and Sead are the Applicants and the Owners.

Mr, Cannata asked if this had to go to Wetlands and Mr. Popper said yes so just accept and then
we will look at the schedule.

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by John Keithan to accept application
#22-26. All were in favor; the motion passed.

f. Application #22-27: Request for Site Plan Modification to construct a 4,992 building in
the floodplain at 263 Main Street. Cromwell Automotive LLC is the Applicant and the
Owner.

g. Application #22-28: Request for Site Plan Modification to construct a 4,992 building at
263 Main Street. Cromwell Automotive LLC is the Applicant and the Owner.

Mr. Popper said that Mr. Rodney Bitgood is here tonight and this project received the wetlands
permit last month. He said he is proposing a new building behind the existing one.

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Chris Cambareri to accept and
schedule applications #22-27 and #22-28 for October 4th. All were in favor; the motion passed.

h. Application #22-29: Request for Site Plan Modification to allow for temporary outside
storage containers at the Walmart Store at 161 Berlin Road. Walmart 2299 is the Applicant
and Infinity Cromwell Prop LTD Partnership 1643 is the Owner.

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by John Keithan to accept and schedule
application #22-29 for a public hearing on October 4th. All were in favor; the motion was
passed.

i. Application #22-30: Request to Amend the Zoning Regulations to delete Sections
3.3.C.4 and 6.11 of the Zoning Regulations to allow for Medical Marijuana Dispensary
Facilities to be permitted in the Highway Business Zone District.



Mr. Popper said that when we established the new regulations we forgot to get rid of the old
regulations so this is just a clean-up task.

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Brian Dufresne to accept and schedule
application #22-30 for October 4th. All were in favor; the motion passed.

j. Application #22-31: Request for Site Plan Modification to install two charging stations at
150 Country Squire Drive. Cromwell Village Associates, LLC is the Applicant and the
Owner,

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Chris Cambareri to accept and
schedule application #22-31 for October 4th. All were in favor; the motion passed.

9, New Business:

a. Application #22-32: Request for a site plan modification at 33 Berlin Road, 6 West
Avenue, LLC is the Applicant and Mary Ann Marchio is the owner.

Michael Cannata recused himself.
Mr. Popper said we will have to delay the site plan modification and hear it on September 27th.

A motion was made by Chris Cambareri and seconded by Brian Dufresne to table application
#22-32. Alice Kelly, Paul Cordone, Ken Rozich, Ann Grasso, John Keithan approved; the
motion passed.

b. Application #22-19: Request for site plan approval to construct a building at 5 Berlin
Road. Bantry Bay Ventures, LLC and Michael J. Cannata are the Applicants and Michael
J. Cannata is the owner.

Mr. Popper said we will hear this application tonight with the public hearing.

10. Public Hearings:

Ken Rozich reads the public hearing notice.
a. Application #22-16: Request for a Special Permit under Section 6.11.B of the Zoning
Regulations to allow for the retail sales of Cannabis and Cannabis related products at 33

Berlin Road. 6 West Ave, LLC is the Applicant and Mary Ann Marchio is the Owner.

A motion was made by Ken Rozich and seconded by Brian Dufresne to table application #22-16.
All were in favor; the motion passed.

b. Application #22-17: Request for a Special Permit under Section 2.7.A.4 of the Zoning
Regulations to allow for a garage larger than 1,000 square feet at 6 River Park Drive. John
Paul Golino is the Applicant and the Owner.



A motion was made by Brian Dufresne and seconded by Chris Cambareri to open the public
hearing for application #22-17. All were in favor; the motion passed.

Mr. Popper said our regulations allow for up to 1,000 square feet for garages. A permit can be
obtained for garages up to 1,600 feet. This garage will be underground but it is still a garage.

Carlos Pena of First Best Builders at 28B Woodhouse Avenue in Wallingford said the owner is
looking for more storage and there is not enough room in the 3-bay garage. He said the storage
space will be under the slab. Mr. Pena said the space will be 12 feet underground with 6-inch
concrete and steel supporting beams. He said the space will hold 6-7 cars and will be 1,400
square feet. Mr. Pena walked the plans around to the Commissioners for better viewing. He said
there will be a straight walk into the house from underground and a lift in the 3rd bay to bring the
cars up. Chairman Kelly and Mr. Cordone asked for specifics about the lift and Mr. Pena said the
underground garage can support the weight of 3 fire trucks. He said the space will be under the
present driveway and will be constructed with rebar and corrugated concrete. Mr. Popper
clarified that they are not exceeding the regulation requirements for a permit.

Chairman Kelly asked if anyone from the public wanted to speak.

Lorrie Young of 4 River Park Drive asked how close this is to her property and the impact it will
have on sewer lines.

Mr. Pena said this will have no impact on your property as it is around 20-30 feet away from
your property. Mr. Popper said that the health and building department will look at this plan and
will not let them violate those regulations.

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Brian Dufresne to close the public
hearing for application #22-17. All were in favor; the motion passed.

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Chris Cambareri to approve
application #22-17. All were in favor; the motion passed.

c. Application #22-18: Request for a Special Permit under Section 6.11.B of the Zoning
Regulations to allow for the retail sales of Cannabis and Cannabis related products at 5
Berlin Road. Bantry Bay Ventures, LL.C & Michael J. Cannata are the Applicants and
Michael J. Cannata is the Owner.

A motion was made by Ken Rozich and seconded by Paul Cordone to open the public hearing
for application #22-18. Michael Cannata recused himself from this application and left the
Commissioner seating. Chairman Kelly, Chris Cambareri, Brian Dufresne, John Keithan, Ann
Grasso, Ken Rozich and Paul Cordone approved; the motion passed.

Attorney Amy Souchins of Horwitz, Sagarin, Slossberg and Knuft at 147 Broad Street, Milford
said 5 Berlin Road is a 5.3-acre site within the highway business zone. She said they have
incorporated all of the staff comments into their presentation.



Tom Daley and Engineer with SLR Consulting will go over the site plan and she showed an
aerial view of the site. He said the Mattabesset is behind us and wetland scientists have identified
the wetlands. Mr. Daley said they have received approval from the Wetlands Commission and
there will be no building in the wetlands. He said the entire area is in a flood plain. He said they
are proposing a 5,000 square foot building with very good traffic circulation. There will be 37
parking spaces although the regulations state we only need 20. He said some of the parking spots
are for parallel parking and would probably be used for employees. He said there will also be a
spot for a loading space. He said there would be full access on the north driveway for customers
and a loop around the property with an exit only driveway on the southside. He explained the
floodplain compensation and talked about the landscaping and buffers. He said they are planning
a large palette of landscaping materials to provide for 4 seasons. Mr. Daley said the Town
Engineer signed off on the floodplain work. He said we are proposing fully compliant, efficient
lighting.

Mohammed Aguib of SLR Consulting at 800 Boylston Street in Boston said he has completed an
analysis of traffic and parking. He showed an overview of the study and analysis and said the
study accounts for new developments and future traffic. He said they have concluded there is
enough parking and the traffic will be acceptable.

Mr. Popper asked if IT data exists for marijuana retail. Mr. Aguib said they use data from
previous projects and similar uses. He said the studies are very conservative. Chairman Kelly
asked how they can look at traffic with what is there now. She asked if they studied other
marijuana facilities perhaps in Massachusetts. Mr. Aguib said they look at existing conditions
and there are no issues and then we add trips that will be generated by this establishment. Mr.
Rozich asked how they determined the number of trips. Mr. Aguib said IT uses equations and
forecasts from similar uses.

Attorney Souchins said Fine Fettle operates these facilities in both CT and MA and Ben Zachs
will be able to tell you about that.

Ms. Grasso said she finds it difficult to exit left out of Parisians Hair Salon parking lot and asked
if this will be similar since people will exit and enter from the same driveway.

Mr. Popper said this site is not as close to the light as Parisians and that isn’t the problem of this
applicant. He said the site line at Parisian’s isn’t the issue here. Mr. Popper also clarified that the
Police Chief doesn’t have an issue with this.

Tom Daley of SLR said the arborvitae will be stepped back from the property by about 25 feet.
He said the site lines are excellent and the full traffic study also agrees but I understand what you
are saying, Ms. Grasso said taking a left is really her concern. Mr. Daley said that the traffic
counter covered 3 days over different times so the study really covered all possible situations. He
also said they will need a DOT encroachment permit and they will be the ones to approve the
curb cut.

Chairman Kelly said the attraction here is not the building size but what you are selling and a



large number of people will be interested in coming here. Mr. Daley said IT has jumped on this
data and has done their research on this especially out West where these businesses have been
running for a while now.

Mr. Dufresne asked about the curb cut and Mr. Daley said it will be 24 feet at the exit.

Sheldon Crosby of L’arc Architect at 14 Colton Street Farmington showed a rendering of the
one-story building and said they scaled it as small as we can. He explained the materials they
will use. Chairman Kelly asked about the blocks/squares shown in the rendering. Mr. Crosby
said it is a synthetic stucco and Mr. Cambareri said it is similar to the new hotel.

Mr. Popper asked about the signage and Mr. Crosby showed the plan with the sign which is
under regulation size. Mr. Cambareri asked how about the height of the ceiling and Mr. Crosby
said about 14 feet.

Ben Zachs, CEO of Fine Fettle at 40 Woodland Street, Hartford said the ceiling height is higher
in the middle for better camera angles.

Mr. Crosby explained the floorplan layout and said customers need to be buzzed in then go
through a security check and then buzzed in again. He said appointments are required to go to the
facility.

Mr. Zachs said due to COVID we implemented timed appointments and orders are placed online.
He said it has actually worked well and we plan on continuing with that model.

Mr. Popper asked if this would be for medical patient and Mr. Zachs said no. Mr. Popper asked if
they would still require appointments for recreational and Mr. Zachs said in the beginning
appointments slots seem to make the most sense. He said the average transaction will be around
3-5 minutes. He said we do understand the demand. Mr. Popper asked what happens if someone
just shows up and Mr. Zach said if an appointment is available we will allow them to place an
order up front but if there are no appointments available then they will have to leave and place an
order online. He said there will be no loitering allowed in the parking lot.

Mr. Zachs said that people must be 21 plus to enter the facility and he explained the check in
process which includes ID verification.

The meeting was paused while the recording tape was changed at 8:21pm.

Chairman Kelly asked where the product was kept and Mr. Zach’s said according to CT
regulations it has to stay in the vault and can’t come out. He said it is a DEA registry vault with 8
inches of concrete on all sides and steel rebar. He said that there is a day gate and employees
must badge in. He explained the process of fulfilling orders.

Mr. Zach talked about the delivery from 4 producers and said the times can be inconsistent. The
producers call ahead to secure delivery. He said every item delivered is counted and put in an
inventory plan. He said CT has a seed to sale process. Mr. Zach said the building will have 360-



degree camera coverage inside and outside with a 30-day backup camera. Ile said they do try to
keep 90 days though. He said they track where all employees have badged in and out and not all
employees have access everywhere.

Mr. Popper asked what the hours will be and how many employees. Attorney Souchins said it
would be 9:00am - 8:00pm 7 days a week. and Mr. Zachs said they would have anywhere from
13 to maximum 20 employees. He said they may overstaff at the beginning and then right side
that number as they understand the staffing needs better. He said we provide a stipend to
employees who carpool, uber or use public transportation. He said we typically have 6-9
maximum employees working at one time. He said the transactions are between 3-5 minutes long
and they allocate about 15 minutes from pull in to pull out for each customer.

Mr. Popper asked about the corporate structure and Mrs. Zachs said we have 18 facilities with 3
of them in CT. He said those are medical facilities. Mr. Zachs named their Chief Officers and
said they have 3 equity applicants who are based in Hartford, CT. He said there are 11
employees in the corporate office and 125 total employees. Ms. Grasso asked if it was hard to
find staff and Mr. Zachs no. She asked about the pay scale and Mr. Zach said a budtender would
make about $18-20 an hour and Managers make in the $75-90k range with full benefits.

Mr. Dufresne asked if there would be a pharmacist on staff and Mr. Zachs said no, not here but
our Regional Director is a Pharmacist and our training curriculum is built by a pharmacist.

Mr. Popper asked about a monument sign on the street and Mr. Crosby showed the area where it
would be on the plans and Mr. Popper said that is fine for tonight but the final plans should show
it on there and based on your description it seems to be acceptable and within the guidelines.

Chairman Kelly asked about the parking space for the delivery truck and Mr. Zachs clarified the
process of the delivery truck and the unloading process. Chairman Kelly asked for a sign in that
spot that says no public parking.

Mr. Cambareri asked how long they anticipate it to be appointment only and Mr. Zachs said it
depends on the demand and how many other establishments there are in the area. He said we will
assess that based on different metrics and when it becomes more normalized. Mr. Zachs
explained the differences between products sold at medical versus recreational facilities and the
taxes at the recreational facility.

Chairman Kelly asked if anyone in the public wanted to speak for or against the application.

Paulette Scarpetti of the BBB at 29 Berlin Road said water from the Mattabesset comes up quite
high between this site and our building. She said she is concerned about water coming into the
building after they start construction. Mr. Popper said that the Town Engineer has reviewed this
plan and site and legally no one is allowed to push water into someone else's property. e said
we will make sure that is not going to happen. Ms. Scarpetti said this is an area where a 100-year
flood is a concern. She also asked about the number of transactions per day and said based on
their figures they will conduct 132 transactions per day so that is a lot more traffic than what they
are saying. She said with only 37 parking spaces there may not be enough parking for all your



customers and employees and they may go to other businesses to park and to use marijuana. Ms.
Scarpetti said someone tried to steal our new umbrella and I can’t imagine what 132 more people
in the area would mean.

Tom Daley of SRL said we took the water concern seriously and we are not sending any water to
the stream that is in between these properties. He said our stormwater detention area is further
away and your property will not see any increase in runoff and there will be no drainage impacts.
He also said the traffic study looks at peak hours and it concluded we have sufficient parking by
exceeding the required 20 spots and having 37. Mr. Daley said we have no interest in customers
parking in the neighbor’s business and the BBB is a far walk from our property.

Mr. Zachs said public consumption is not allowed and we take that very seriously. He said
trespassing is not acceptable and we want to be good quiet neighbors.

James Demetriades, 272 Skyview Drive and a member of the Town Council said the Town
Council wanted to make sure the organization was a good fit for the neighborhood. He said [ am
very impressed with the plan and presentation. He asked about the lighting in the parking lot and
whether there would be light pollution and would it be well lit in the evening.

Mr. Daley said the lights will be LED full cut offs. He said they are modern fixtures that are fully
programmable. He said there will be zero-foot candles at the property line, Mr. Zachs said the
state has regulations as well,

Mr. Dufresne said that this would create quite a stir when opened and asked how they would
manage the non-appointment customers. Mr. Zach said we would work with Laz Parking and
would those without appointments that there are no slots. He also said they would put that
appointments are necessary on ail materials. They would also have greeters outside to manage
the flow. Mr. Cordone asked about the availability of appointments for people who walk in and
Mr. Zachs said they do have appointments for people who don’t know what they want. He said
there is a workflow to the operation. He said there is no scientific answer as to when we can get
rid of appointments and many elements are up in the air. Chairman Kelly asked how people will
know you are open and Mr. Zach said he isn’t able to define the business as a marijuana facility.
Chairman Kelly and Mr. Popper agreed an open now sign or similar would be consistent with
other businesses’ grand openings.

Chairman Kelly said this is a good site for something the State says is legal.
Paulette Scarpetti of the BBB asked when could this be built and open. Mr. Zachs said thatis a
good question and [ wish I had an answer. He said it is usually a 6-8-month process for the

building process and another 4 weeks or so for the regulatory checks but those are just estimates.

Mr. Cambareri asked if there were traffic issues would you work with the police. Mr. Zachs said
the State law says they have to reimburse the extra money the police spend up to $50,000.

A motion was made by Chris Cambareri and seconded by Brian Dufresne to close the public
hearing for application 22-18. Chris Cambareri, Brian Dufresne, Chairman Kelly, Ken Rozich,



Paul Cordone, John Keithan, Ann Grasso approved; the motion passed.

Mr. Popper said there should be a condition of a sign in the loading spot that says no public
parking and the building sign and monument sign should be shown on the plan and to meet the
regulations. He also said that no other departments including the Town Engineer, Police Chief
and water department had any comments.

Mr. Popper and Attorney Souchins agreed that the motions should be in the order of application
#22-20, #22-18, #22-19.

A motion was made by Ken Rozich and seconded by Paul Cordone to approve application

#22-32.
Chris Cambareri, Brian Dufresne, Chairman Kelly, Ken Rozich, Paul Cordone, John Keithan,
Ann Grasso approved; the motion passed.

A motion was made by Ken Rozich and seconded by Brian Dufresne to approve application
#22-18 with the 2 conditions of putting the signage that adheres to the regulations on the final
plan and putting a no public parking sign on the loading parking spot. Chris Cambareri, Brian
Dufresne, Chairman Kelly, Ken Rozich, Paul Cordone, John Keithan, Ann Grasso approved; the
motion passed.

d. Application #22-20: Request for a Special Permit under Section 4.1 of the Zoning
Regulations to construct a building within the Flood Zone at 5 Berlin Road. Bantry Bay
Ventures, LLC & Michael J. Cannata are the Applicants and Michael J. Cannata is the
Owner.

A motion was made by Ken Rozich and seconded by Chris Cambareri to approve application 22-
20 with the 2 conditions of putting the signage that adheres to the regulations on the final plan
and putting a no public parking sign on the loading parking spot. Chris Cambareri, Brian
Dufresne, Chairman Kelly, Ken Rozich, Paul Cordone, John Keithan, Ann Grasso approved; the
motion passed.

Michael Cannata returned to the meeting.
11. Commissioner's Comments:
12. Approval of Minutes:

a. July 19, 2022

A motion was made by Michael Cannata and seconded by Ann Grasso to approve the minutes of
July 19, 2022. All were in favor; the motion passed.

13. Adjourn:

A motion was made by Brian Dufresne and seconded by Chris Cambareri to adjourn at 9:28pm.
All were in favor; the motion passed.

10



Respectfully submitted,

;{‘mo\a;%\!\“%

Linda Imme
Recording Clerk

11



